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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Built in 1912, the wood-frame, flush-board First Presbyterian Church building
is a one-storey structure arranged in what is basically an ell-shape. The

ell form of the building is slightly transfigured by a three-storey bell-tower
attached to the southeast corner of the church and by a low, small, rectangular
addition, extending from the rear of the structure (north elevation). Only
one other structure, a five-room manse, shares the terraced lot occupied

by the church building. The style of architecture is actually a combination
of two styles, High Victorian Gothic and Stick Style. This combination makes
the First Presbyterian Church an architectural rarity in southwest Arkansas.
The most impressive feature. of the structure is the square, three-storey,
bell-tower positioned in the front of the church (south elevation) and
enhanced with Gothic detail. Its castellelated roof-line looms over a
decorative cornice, which in turn surmounts low-relief machicolation. Below
the upper portions of the tower stretches a band of tall,centre-pointed,
segmental windows. The Gothic nature of the windows is weakened by the
presence of glass hood louvers, which occupy the largest portion of each
aperture. However, the small sections of the windows lying above the transom
are cut out in a Gothic, trefoil pattern.

The main entranceway dominates the lowest level of the tower. A small,
high-gabled porch covers the entranceway. The exposed rafters and the
solid, heavy woodworking found in the gable end of the porch-roof are
characteristic of both Gothic and Stick Style architecture. Two small,
chamferred posts supporting the porch roof are implanted on solid concrete,
step-shaped railing,which lines the exterior entrance-stairway. The simple
double-leaf doorway is surrounded by a plain architrave.

High-pitched gable roofs with overhanging eaves cover the main sections

of the church. As in the porch roof, heavy, decorative woodwork, resembling
framing, embellishes the gable ends of the main roof. A feature .found here,
but not on the porch, is the use of large, solid, single and paired brackets
for decoration and support.

The south and east elevations each possess large, Gothic-tracery windows.
The tracery found in each window is a wide and heavy type, common to the
later phases of Gothic Revival. The window found on the south elevation
of the First Presbyterian Church building is a centre-pointed arch window,
divided by flamboyant, intersected tracery. The window placed on the
building's east elevation is a segmental-arch window with lancet-arch
tracery. ‘ S

Most of ' the remaining church windows are -set within tall, rectangular casements
and feature lancet-arch tracery.

The interior of the First Presbyterian Church building is divided into an
atrium (in the tower), a nave and classrooms. The original hardwood pews
and pulpit remain in excellent condition. The wooden ceiling is supported
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by an evenly spaced series of heavy, carved brackets. The amount of
exposed framing found in the ceiling is a common feature of Stick Style.

No major alterations are known to have been performed on either the
exterior or the interior of the structure.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

‘The area of significance for the First Presbyterian Church building of
Nashville, Arkansas, is architectural. It is perhaps the only structure

in southwest Arkansas that artistically combines High Victorian Gothic

and Stick Style architecture. Perhaps an even more unusual facet of

the structure is its late date of construction (1912), because both High
Victorian Gothic and Stick Style architecture are said to have been most
popular somewhere between 1860 and 1890. Though the building is no longer
used as a church, its architectural importance has prompted the Howard
County Heritage Club to acquire the structure and to plan for its continued
preservation.

The First Presbyterian Church building of Nashville is a wood-frame, flush-
board structure arranged in what is basically an ell shape. The ell form
of the building is slightly transformed by a three-storey bell-tower,
attached to the southeast corner of the church, and by a low, small,
rectangular addition, extending from the rear of the structure (north
elevation). Only one other structure, a five-room manse, shares the
terraced lot occupied by the church building. 3 :

The most impressive part of the structure is the square, three-storey
bell-tower, positioned in the front of the church (south elevation). A

number of Gothic details are found on the tower. Among these are the
castellated roof-line, the machicolation located beneath a decorative

cornice, and the pointed-arch windows which form a band around the upper
sections of the tower. Trefoil designs may be found above the transoms of

the windows. A stick-style porch covers the entranceway located at the

base of the tower. The high, gable porch roof features both exposed rafters

and solid, heavy, woodwork, masking the gable-end (a feature also characteristic
of High Victorian Gothic). :
High-pitched, gable roofs with overhanging eaves cover the main sections

of the building. As in the porch roof, heavy, decorative woodwork, resembling
exposed framing, embellishes the gable-ends of the main roofs. A distinctive
touch is the use of large, solid, Stick Style brackets for decoration and

for support.

The south and east elevations each possess large, Gothic tracery windows.
The tracery found in each window is a wide and heavy type, common to the
later phases of Gothic Revival. The window found on the south elevation of
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the First Presbyterian Church building is a centre-pointed arch window,
divided by flamboyant, intersected tracery. The window placed on the
building's east elevation is formed in the shape of a segmental arch,
with lancet-arch tracery separating the panes. Most of the remaining
church windows are set within tall, rectangular casements and feature
lancet-arch tracery.

The interior of the First Presbyterian Church building is divided into
an atrium (located in the tower), a nave and classrooms. The origanal
hardwood pews and pulpit remain in excellent condition. The beamed,
wooden ceiling is supported, in true Stick Style tradition, by heavy,
carved brackets.

No major alterations are known to have been performed on either the
exterior or the interior of the church.

The name of the Reverend M.M. Lawson is synonymous with the history of
the church. As the first minister in the building, he settled a
controversy which involved the final form which the architecture would
assume. His congregation was opposed to the use of beams and brackets
on the interior ceiling. The absence of these components would have
been out of keeping with the overall style of the structure. However,
the Reverend Lawson, who favored the inclusion of the beams and brackets,
must have been an influential person, for today the brackets and beams
bear mute witness to the triumph of his wishes.

Despite its relatively recent date of construction (1912), the First
Presbyterian Church building of Nashville, Arkansas, combines two

styles which flourished in the late nineteenth century, High Victorian
Gothic and Stick Style. The combination of these styles was not unpre-
cedented. 1In fact, Richard Upjohn, the famous New York architect, built

a group of wooden, country churches in the 1870's which combine features
of these two styles. However, their combination in the First Presbyterian
Church building of Nashville, Arkansas,is perhaps the only such occurrence
in southwest Arkansas.
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